City Council Introduction: Monday, April 20, 2009
Public Hearing: Monday, April 27, 2009, at 5:30 p.m.

Bill No. 09-58

FACTSHEET

TITLE: CHANGE OF ZONE NO. 09006, requested by
the Director of the Urban Development Department,
to designate the former Northeast Branch “Carnegie”
Library as a Landmark, generally located at North 27"
Street and Center Street.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval

ASSOCIATED REQUESTS: Declaration of Surplus
Property (09-56), Change of Zone No. 08074 (09-57)
and Street & Alley Vacation No. 09003 (09-59).

FINDINGS OF FACT:

SPONSOR: Planning Department

BOARD/COMMITTEE: Planning Commission
Public Hearing: 04/08/09
Administrative Action: 04/08/09

RECOMMENDATION: Approval (8-0: Gaylor Baird,
Carroll, Esseks, Francis, Partington, Larson,
Sunderman and Taylor voting ‘yes’; Cornelius
absent).

This change of zone request was heard by the Planning Commission in conjunction with the associated
Declaration of Surplus Property, Change of Zone No. 08074 and Street & Alley Vacation No. 09003.

The purpose of this change of zone request is to designate the former Northeast Branch Library Building as
a historic landmark. The library was built in 1908 at the southwest corner of 27" and Orchard Streets. This
library building was relocated to its current location at 2121 N. 27" Street in 1992. The building has
remained in city ownership since its construction, serving since its relocation as the office of a local
revitalization agency. The property is currently owned by the City of Lincoln and is proposed to be declared

The staff recommendation of approval is based upon the “Analysis” as set forth on p.3, finding that the
proposed landmark designation will recognize and protect a building of historic and architectural significance
and is in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan. The Preservation Guidelines are found on Exhibit “A”
attached to the proposed ordinance. The Historic Preservation Commission has recommended approval.

On April 8, 2009, the Planning Commission agreed with the staff recommendation and voted 8-0 to

1.
2.
surplus and sold to Matt Talbot Kitchen and Outreach.
3.
The staff presentation is found on p.5-6.
4, Testimony in support on behalf of Matt Talbot Kitchen and Outreach is found on p.6-7.
5. There was no testimony in opposition.
6.
recommend approval of this landmark designation.
7.

FACTSHEET PREPARED BY: Jean L. Preister

On April 8, 2008, the Planning Commission also voted 8-0 to recommend approval of the associated
Change of Zone No. 08074, and to find the proposed Declaration of Surplus Property and Street & Alley
Vacation No. 09003 to be in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan.

DATE: April 13, 2009

REVIEWED BY:

DATE: April 13, 2009

REFERENCE NUMBER: FS\CC\2009\CZ.09006+




LINCOLN/LANCASTER COUNTY PLANNING STAFF REPORT

for APRIL 8, 2009 PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING

PROJECT #: Change of Zone N0.09006
PROPOSAL.: To designate the former Northeast Branch “Carnegie” Library as a landmark
LOCATION: N. 27" St and Center St.

EXISTING ZONING: I-1-Industrial

CONCLUSION: The proposed landmark designation will recognize and protect a building of
historic and architectural significance in conformance with the Comprehensive
Plan.

RECOMMENDATION: Approval

GENERAL INFORMATION:

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: The remaining portion of Lots 8 through 11, Block 3, Deerfield Addition;
located in the SE 1/4 of Section 13-10-6, Lancaster County, Nebraska.

EXISTING LAND USE:  Office

SURROUNDING LAND USE AND ZONING:

North: [-1, Industrial Parking lot and railroad corridor
South: P, Public Lincoln Water System
East R-4, Residential Multi-family
[-1, Industrial Grain elevators
West: P, Public

ASSOCIATED APPLICATIONS: CPC#09003 surplus property, SAV #09003 and
CZ #08074 Change of Zone

HISTORY:

February 9, 2009 CPC #08027 to amend the N. 27" St. Corridor and Environs Redevelopment
Plan for the Matt Talbot Kitchen and Outreach Project was approved by the
City Council.

June 1988 CZ#2403 for a change of zone from I-1 and R-2 to R-4 on the east side of N.
27" St and Center St. was approved by the City Council.

The former Carnegie Library was moved to its current location in 1992. Since the building was
moved it has been used for NeighborWorks as office space.




COMPREHENSIVE PLAN SPECIFICATIONS:

Require

new development to be compatible with character of neighborhood and adjacent uses. (p.68)

Adopt as public policy the careful stewardship of significant, publicly owned historic resources, including a full and open
examination of alternatives when major alterations or demolition are considered. Designation of such resources under
the preservation ordinance would demonstrate leadership and standardize review of proposed changes.

Continue to inventory, research, evaluate, and celebrate the full range of historic resources throughout Lancaster

County,

collaborating with individuals, associations, and institutions, and designating landmarks and districts through

the local preservation ordinance and National Register of Historic Places. (p. 142)

ANALYSIS:

1.

2.

This application is for landmark designation of the former Northeast Branch Library building.

The property in this application is owned by the City of Lincoln and is proposed to be
declared surplus and sold to Matt Talbot Kitchen and Outreach.

Consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, the City seeks to designate the property as a
landmark to identify its historic significance and to provide a public process of design review
of future changes to the property.

Properties that are designated as landmarks under chapter 27.57 of the Lincoln Zoning Code
are subject to design review prior to alteration or additions. The proposed preservation
guidelines under which such review would be conducted are attached.

The library was built in 1908 at the southwest corner of 27" and Orchard Streets with
$10,000 in assistance from Andrew Carnegie. George Berlinghof was the architect for the
Neoclassic building of buff brick with limestone trim. The library operated until 1982, then
in 1992 was relocated approximately one mile north to allow commercial redevelopment of
its original site. The building has remained in city ownership since its construction, serving
since its relocation as the office of a local revitalization agency. The landmark application
IS attached.

The Historic Preservation Commission recommended unanimously on March 19, 2009 that
the library be designated as a landmark for its architectural and historical significance.

Prepared by:

Ed Zimmer
Historic Preservation Planner

DATE:

March 26, 2009



APPLICANT:

OWNER:

CONTACT:

Dave Landis, Director
Lincoln Urban Development Department

City of Lincoln

Ed Zimmer, Planner

Lincoln-Lancaster County Planning Department
402-441-6360

ezimmer@lincoln.ne.gov
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APPLICATION FOR LANDMARK OR LANDMARK DISTRICT DESIGNATION
ADDENDUM TO PETITION TO AMEND THE ZONING ORDINANCE
LINCOLN, NEBRASKA

NAME
Ilistoric  Northeast Branch Library
NeHBS Site #LC13:D11-092

LOCATION Address 2121 North 27" Street

CLASSIFICATION
Proposed Designation Catlegory
X Landmark X building(s)
Present Llse
X Office
OWNER OF PROPERTY
Name City of Lincoln
Address attn: Urban Development Dept., Suite 400
808 P Street
Lincoln, NE 68508

GEOGRAPIHICAL DATA
Lepal Description Remaining portions of Lots 8-11, Block 3, Deerfield
Addition, Lincoln ,Lancaster County, NE

Number ol Acres or Square Feet: 9654 square feet, more or less

REPRESENTATION IN EXISTING SURVEYS
Title Nebraska Historic Building Survey
Date  On-going X Siate County x local

Depository for survey records Nebr. State Historical Society & Lincoln/Lancaster
County Planning Dept.
City  Lincoln State Nebraska

Is proposed Landmark or Landmark District histed in the National Register”?
X no

DESCRIPTION AND HISTORY

Condinon
X excellent X modified X relocaled 1992

0093



DESCRIPTION

I'he former Nontheast Branch Library is a small gem of Neoclassical architecture. Although it
meastures only about 45 feet wide and 30 feet deep, it appears larger due 10 the generous scale of
the main approach stairs, the wide arched entrance, and the large windows. The building has a
rusticated limestone base, buff-brick walls with fine detailing at the comers, and abundant
limestone omament at the entrance, front windows, and comice. The entrance pavilion projects
from the main block of the building and features in-antis (recessed) Roman lonic columns, a
pediment. and a 1all parapel reinforcing the building's bold scale. The north and south sides of the
fuildng have bands of four tall windows and the rear (west) has a high band of smaller windows

I'he lower portion of the front steps was lost for widening of 27" Street in the original location but
the upper stairs were retained and reconstructed al the new location, The interior of the building
has been extensively allered

HISTORY:

After Lincoln lost its city library in the Masonic Temple fire of 1899, a new library was
constructed at 14" and N Streets with assistance from Andrew Camnegie, the industnalist and
philanthropist whose grants assisted in the construction of over 2,500 libraries nationwide in the
early 20" century. Neighbors in what was then the northeast part of Lincoln raised over $1,000 1o




purchase lund at 27" and Orchard Streets and Lincoln’s {irst branch library was built there in 1908
with $10,000 of Carnegie funding. Evenwally Camegie assisted (in the 1910s) the suburban towns
ol College View, University Place, and Havelock to build town libraries and upon the annexation
of those towns to Lincoln between 1926 and 1931, the Lincoln libraries had a remarkable five
buildings constructed with Camegie assistance. The University Place and College View library
buildings still stand on North and South 48" Streets (respectively); the main branch downtown and

the Havelock library have been demolished

George Berlinghof (1858-1944) was
the architect for the Northeast Branch,
along with Carnegie-funded libraries
in Beatrice, Chadron, and Manhattan,
Kansas. He was a native of Germany
who came to the U. S, in the 1880s
and practiced in Council Blulls, lowa,
Omaha and Beatrice before settling in
Lincoln in 1905 He built numerons
courthouses throughout the region and
was a major lgure in Lincoln's
development, especially during his
partnership with Ellery Davis (ca.
1910-17} that produced Lincoln High
School, the UNI. College of Law

=y

(*Old Law,” now part of Architecture Hall), the Miller and Pame buildings, and the Security

Mutual Building (now CenterStone)

I'he Northeast Branch
served as a city
library until 1982 and
was the last of the
city s Camegle
facilities 1o remain in
its original use. The
city housed other
programs in the
building for a decade
belore u proposal from
developer Tam Allan
was accepted for
purchase of the land
at 27" and Orchard,
conditioned on
moving the library
building



October 5, 1992 was moving day lor the
920.000 pound structure, which was supported
on a cradle of steel beams, mounted on |00
wheels, pulled by four trucks. A taller
basement was provided at the new structure to
create usable space and a homeowner-
assistance agency (Neighborhoods, Inc., later
called NeighborWorks Lincoln) was
headquartered in the building.

Plans by NeighborWorks to relocate, and the . - —
city’s intention 1o deed the property to Matt Talbot Kitchen and Qutreach (2009), has prompted this

landmark application prior to the transfer of ownership.

0o



8. SIGNIFICANCE

Period Areas of Significance-Check and justify

1908 architecture, education (library)

Specific dates: built 1908, relocated 1992
Builder/Architect: George Berlinghof
Statement of Significance:
The Northeast Branch “Carnegie” Library 1s an excellent example of Neoclassical architecture,
designed by George Berlinghof, one of Lincoln’s leading architects, and preserved through efforts
of the City and the neighborhood.. Although relecated from its original site, the former library

remains on a highly visible site on North 27" Street,

9. STANDARDS FOR DESIGNATION
(Check one(s) that apply)

Represents a distinctive architectural style or innovation, or is the work of a crafisman

whose individual work is significant in the development of the City of Lincoln, the
County of Lancaster, the State of Nebraska, or the United States

10.  MAJOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES

Site files, Lincoln Planning Department

1. FORM PREPARED BY:
Name/Title: Ed Zimmer/Historic Preservation Planner
Organization Lincoln/Lancaster County Planning Dept.

Date Submitted: March 27, 2009

Street & Number 555 8. 10™ St Telephone (402)441-6360
City or Town Lincoln State NE, 68510
Signature

F-FILES\PLANNING HPC\LMARKS'NEBranchLibrary\NELibraryLDApp.wpd





